Unapproved, date approved:
VILLAGE OF ELLICOTTVILLE
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 14, 2025

PRESENT: Nancy Rogan,  Chairperson
Gregory Cappelli, Member
Blair Hamilton, Member
Josh Whitney, Member

ALSO PRESENT: Gregory Keyser-Village Planner, Kelly Fredrickson-CEO, Chad Neal-
Village Board, Aaron Tiller-Architect, Gabriella luculano-Applicant

AGENDA: VZP-2025-31- 29 Washington Street, Gabriella luculano
Historic District Review & Architectural Design Review of
New front entry doors

VSP-2025-005- 14 Washington Street, Geovanni Alberto
Sign Permit Review for a new hanging sign at
Trattoria Partenope

VZP-2025-63- 21 Rockwell Avenue, John & Kim Hushen
Letter of Intent for a Resubdivision to allow a lot line
adjustment between 2 lots.

Nancy Rogan, Chairperson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.with four members
present and presented the agenda.

The Minutes of the September 2, 2025 Planning Board Work Session were read. Corrections
were made.

MOTION: Moved by Josh Whitney to approve the Minutes of the September 2, 2025
Planning Board Work Session as corrected. Seconded by Greg Cappelli. Vote 3-0. Carried.

The Minutes of the September 9, 2025 Planning Board Meeting were read. Corrections were
made.

MOTION: Moved by Greg Cappelli to approve the Minutes of the September 9, 2025
Planning Board Meeting as corrected. Seconded by Blair Hamilton. Vote 3-0. Carried.

DISCUSSION: Greg Keyser presented VZP-2025-31, 29 Washington Street, Gabriella
luculano, Historic District and Architectural Design review of new front entry doors. He
advised that the applicant was looking into replacing the doors in kind, but it would be at a
substantial expense. She is proposing wooden handles on the existing doors.



Gabby luculano stated that eight businesses have the same doors. She is proposing a vinyl
insert with her business logo in the middle of the glass panels.

Nancy Rogan noted that at one of the meetings we discussed breaking the full glass up with
some type of insert.

Greg Cappelli stated you are presenting metal doors with a logo.

Josh Whitney asked about painting the black doors white to match the facade.

Nancy Rogan said she also looked at the doors of businesses in the commercial district.
She noted that in the 1950’s many of the businesses had these same style doors which were
in place when the Historic District designation was made. Building materials in 2025 are
different than in the 1920s and 1950s. This is a good solution.

Blair Hamilton and Josh Whitney agreed.

Greg Cappelli said he is not overly happy with the doors which are significantly different from
the original. His concern is allowing doors with a logo as a fix to the situation.

Josh Whitney stated that our concern is setting a precedent by allowing the fix with a logo on
glass. We cannot grant approval after the fact.

Nancy Rogan advised that we need to preserve the Historic District, but we will have to be
open to some changes.

Greg Cappelli said my taste is not the same as yours, and | am opposed to asking for
forgiveness after the fact.

Nancy Rogan asked about the authority of the renter to be the applicant instead of the
property owner?

Gabby luculano stated that her lease says she is responsible for the doors, not the property
owner.

Greg Keyser noted that if the Planning Board is moving forward the next step in the
procedure would be to set a public hearing for the November meeting.

MOTION: Moved by Blair Hamilton to set a public hearing for VZP-2025-32, Gabriella
luculano, Historic District and Architectural Design review of new front entry doors for
October 12, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. Seconded by Josh Whitney. Vote 3-0. Carried.

DISCUSSION: Greg Keyser presented VSP-2025-05, 14 Washington Street, Giovanni
Alberto, Sign Permit application for a new hanging sign. The 3 foot by 3 foot square wooden
sign will be hung 10 feet above the ground in the existing frame and replaces the previous
hanging sign. A drawing is provided.

Nancy Rogan noted that it is not more than 3 colors and meets the sign requirements.
MOTION: Moved by Greg Cappelli to approve the sign permit for a 9 square foot wood
hanging sign at 14 Washington Street as per materials submitted in VSP-2025-05 by
Giovanni Alberto. Seconded by Blair Hamilton. Vote 3-0. Carried.

DISCUSSION: Greg Keyser presented VZP-2025-63, 21 Rockwell Avenue, John & Kim



Hushen, an application to determine if the proposal meets the criteria for a minor subdivision.
If the Board determines the proposal satisfies the requirements for a minor subdivision, it may
approve the re-subdivision. If it determines, otherwise, preliminary and final plat approval is
required. The criteria for a minor subdivision in Article 1 Section 5 includes the following:
e The division of any parcel into five (5) or fewer lots or all lots are 5 acres or more in

area; and

All lots front on an existing public highway; and

All lots meet the Health Department Standards with regard to water supply and

sewage disposal.
The current lot is 0.14 acres in the Medium Density District and a non-conforming building lot
with a single-family dwelling with a detached accessory garage and storage shed. The
proposed lot line adjustment adds approximately 0.07 acres to the lot which is situated in the
VC2 District. The proposed lot is consistent with other lots on Rockwell Avenue.

Mr. Keyser advised that the Planning Board has until December 15, 2025 to determine one of
the following:
1. The proposal does not meet the criteria for a minor subdivision and requires a
preliminary plat application in accordance with Article 2, Section 3.
2. The proposal meets the criteria for a minor subdivision but will have the impact of a
major subdivision and requires a preliminary plat application per Article 2, Section 3.
3. The proposal meets the criteria for a minor subdivision and will not have a major
impact on the orderly growth and development of the Village, and is approved by the
Planning Board.

Nancy Rogan asked if the Board is ready to act on the request?

MOTION: Moved by Greg Cappelli that the proposal meets the criteria for a minor subdivision
and will not have a major impact on the orderly growth and development of the Village and
the re-subdivision of the lot at 21 Rockwell Avenue as per materials submitted in
VZP-2025-63 by John & Kim Hushen is approved by the Planning Board. Seconded by Blair
Hamilton. Vote 3-0. Carried.

DISCUSSION: Greg Cappelli referred to the lot on Madison Street where Elaine Northrup
was going to build a single-family home. He expressed concern with the use of the alleyway
as a driveway without approval.

Kelly Fredrickson noted that when she built the new house the alleyway was to be opened
up.

Nancy Rogan advised that residents in the neighborhood are using the alley for parking and
calling it their driveway.

Mr. Fredrickson said the Village is not maintaining the alley. Someone using the alley as a
driveway paved a portion of it.



Greg Cappelli said we need to find out who owns the alley and if people are encroaching on
it?

Kelly Fredrickson suggested a conversation with Richard Stanton, Village Attorney on the
issue.

Greg Cappelli asked Greg Keyser to contact Richard Stanton about the status of the alley,
who is using it and who owns it? Maybe the Village will want to sell it.

Greg Keyser stated that the alley needs to be open and cannot be used for parking.

DISCUSSION: Josh Whitney noted that during the past weekend the door to the Blue Collar
cannabis shop was open. New York State regulations state that the door has to be closed at
all times. He approached the employee who was not aware of the regulation.

Nancy Rogan stated that they had a booth/table outside on Monroe Street advertising
products.

Kelly Fedrickson said that the Planning Board should contact the NYS Cannabis Control
Board with the concern and issue.

Blair Hamilton said we should file a complaint with New York State.

Greg Cappelli said they also had a sandwich board out on the sidewalk.

Nancy Rogan stated that the Planning Board as a whole should file a complaint with the
Village Board and/or NYS Cannabis Control Board.

Chad Neal advised that the owner needs to know that the employee had the door propped
open. The Village Board has discussed what is allowed at their meeting.

MOTION: Moved by Greg Cappell that the Planning Board instructs Greg Keyser to notify
Richard Stanton of the violation to the cannabis regulations by Blue Collar and instructs Chad
Neal to notify the Village Board of the issue. Seconded by Josh Whitney. Vote 3-0. Carried.

DISCUSSION: Greg Keyser presented a suggestion that the work session be eliminated and
that if the Planning Board needed to preview materials it could meet at 4:30 p.m. prior to the
scheduled meeting. Planning Board members agreed that having one meeting would be
better. Mr. Keyser said this would start with the December meeting.

DISCUSSION: Greg Cappelli asked about the status of the Croce building on Washington
Street?

Aaron Tiller advised that they are working on the mechanicals.

Kelly Frecrickson noted that a building permit cannot be issued until he reviews the work.

MOTION: Moved by Blair Hamilton to adjourn at 6:15 p.m. Seconded by Greg Cappelli. Vote
3-0. Carried.

Submitted by Donna Baldwin, Secretary



